











and university seals. (If you wish to study the
stained glass panels of the various universities in
the windows, a key to them is found next to the
elevator doors in the lobby straight ahead.) The
Reading Room is 202 feet long and 45 feet wide
and will have a seating capacity of 450. &

Books for the research workers may be carried
Jfrom any of the six levels of stacks by dumb-
waiters. A

The stacks themselves are of a . . . useful design.
In every section is a shelf which may be drawn
out and used as a temporary resting place for
volumes which are being examined. Ventilators
are built into the-ends of the stacks to eliminate
any possible waste of space. A few of the rows of
stacks have been closed off by strong, metal
screened doorways, entrance to which may be
effected only with the master key . . . Six levels of
stacks bring the total capacity of the library well
beyond 275,000 volumes.

Among the-other physical features of the interior
are unique, handwrought railings along all of the
stairways, bits of ornamental grill-work and
careful selected furnishings in excellent taste
which combine qualities of beauty and practica-
bility. Floors of the research section (9th floor)
are of a terrazzo which is poured between
borders of an unusually beautiful Levanto marble
which has been imported from Italy. Wainscoting
on the top floor and on the stairways of a
Hautville marble which has been brought from
France. An American marble from Missouri,
known as Napoleon grey, is used also in several
parts of the building.

For the convenience of those who may be dis-
turbed by conversation in the Reading Room,
consultation rooms, . . . have been situated in the

towers ... ¥
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These rooms were converted in the 1980s
to use by some of the Law Clinics.

The Nimth Floor

You may wish to take the elevator in the
lobby to the left of the main desk to the 9th
floor which is, in fact, the very next level
above the Reading Room (stack levels 3-8
are all behind the Reading Room),

The floor immediately above the reading
room is devoted to 32 offices for the use of
visiting lawyers, members of the faculty and
other research workers. It also contains a few
rooms used for special purposes.

The Cook Library (Room 903) is as
nearly as possible an exact replica of the
private library of Mr. Cook's New York
home; it contains the original furniture and
decorations, in addition to his valuable
private collection of books. There is a heavily
carved solid mahogany desk, fabricated in the
Philippines at the custom order of Elias
Finley Johnson, then High Commissioner of
the Philippines and later a member of the
Law Faculty at Michigan. This desk was
donated to the Law School in July 1982 by
his daughter-in-law Irene B. Johnson. A
companion desk, made for William H, Taft,
who at one time was Governor-General of the
Philippines, is now at the Bentley Historical
Library.




The Herbert Sott Seniinar Room
(Room 951) was converted from a small
closed faculty library to its present use
primarily with funds from members of the
firm Barvis, Sott, Denn and Driker, and other
friends of Mr. Sott in honor of his 45th
reunion,

Please return via the elevator to level 3 of
the Reading Room.

Library Lore

According to Elizabeth Brown, retired
Research Associate in Law, “William Cook
was very much a creature of his upbringing.
When he graduated from the Law School in
the 1880s, legal research as presently prac-
ticed was a rarity. Hence, he assumed that the
various alcoves around the reading room of
the Legal Research Building would house all
the books that were needed. Professor Wil-
liam Bishop’s father, then the University
Librarian, was shown the plans and he ex-
ploded politely. Here was this magnificent
building, a superb reading room, all these
faculty offices and there wasn't a single stack
for some books. That is why the stack addi-
tion pokes out onto Monroe Street. With
great difficulty, Cook was persuaded to have
his architects make provision for some kind
of building that would house the books.

“Even before World War I, it was clear
that the Law School was running out of space

for books. All during the War, unused fund
from the William W. Cook Endowment
income were put aside to finance the addi-
tion, Fortunately, the foundations for the
original six levels were sufficiently sturdy to
support another four levels, The Law School
saved, but unfortunately prices rose more
rapidly than the savings did. Eventually the
Michigan state legislature allocated nearly
three quarters of a million dollars for the
construction of the stack addition and the
bridge. There has been much criticism of the
aluminum panels, but the available funds
could not provide for dressed stone to harmo-
nize with the rest of the buildings.”

So, in 1955, the stacks were increased to
10 levels and the bridge was added from
level 7 to the third floor of Hutchins Hall.

By the 1970s it was clear that the library
was again running out of space. So then Dean
Theodore St. Antoine launched a multi-
million dollar fundraising campaign to build
the necessary addition. Alumni were in-
volved from very near the beginning of the
planning and, together with other private
donors, they raised the nearly 10 million
dollars needed to build the new library. Both
alumni and faculty desired the new building
not to conflict with the original Quadrangle.
It would have been virtually impossible to
construct a building in the style of the origi-
nal Quadrangle due to cost and a lack of the

" necessary artisians. The decision was made to

build underground.
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The Allan F. and Alene Smith
Underground Library

Please take the stairs in the Southeast corner
of the reading room to enter the Allan and
Alene Smith Library addition. As you de-
scend you will notice the bronze Constitution,
a gift of George E. Sperling Jr., J.D. '40 and
Elizabeth Sperling; and a bronze Bill of
Rights, given by the Judicial Conference of
the United States Committee on the Bicenten-
nial of the Constitution, Judge Damon J.
Keith, Chair. '

(If you prefer to use elevators, take the
elevators to the left of the main desk down to
Level 1. Exit, and turn left, go through the
double doors and immediately to your right
take the ramp to a special elevator at the
landing level whiclg will take you to S-1.)

Architect Gunnar Birkerts performed near
wizardry, bouncing light off limestone panels
and reflective glass into a V-shaped moat -
stretching 160 feet along two sides of the new
library, Rather than feeling trapped or hidden
underground, as many feared when the initial
plan was discussed, the scholar using the new
addition by day is surrounded by as much or
more natural light than one in the original
reading room with its huge end windows.
Even from the lowest level one can see trees,
the original law library, and semetimes even
one’s own reflection! A smaller friangular
well allows light to come in from the back of
the new addition, reinforcing the feeling that
one is cradled in light. In the S-1 Display case
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appears a copy of the article in Architectural
Record featuring the new addition.

Not merely beautiful, the new addition is
highly functional as well: There are 246
carrels: enough that each student who wishes
to have one may do so, sharing with up to two
other students. The carrels, with lockable
bookcases, are wired for electricity. Numer-
ous other tables, chairs and stools allow one
to be closer still to the windows for short
assignments. The Law Review and the Journal
of Law Reform have offices on level S-3, and
a no-food lounge is there as well. The Michi-
gan Journal of International Legal Studies

~ has offices on level S-2.

This 77,000 square foot building can
presently accommodate 180,000 volumes in
finished space and another 200,000 to
300,000 in unfinished space. What is perhaps
most significant about the new library from
an academic point of view is that it continues
the trend toward open stacks and access to the
materials, so that students, lawyers and other
scholars needing access to the materials can
have it directly. This direct exploration of the
sources is a luxury few such extensive librar-
ies in the world can offer their researchers.
The Users Manual available at the S-1 infor-
mation/reference desk covers the whole
library, above and below ground. A self-
conducted audio tape tour of the library is
available at the Main Desk Service Center on
S-2,




REFLECTIONS ON THE
LAW QUADRANGLE

n 1934, A Book of the Law Quad-
rangle at the University of Michigan
was written. In it appeared this re-
sponse to the “modern school of
architectural criticism which refuses to
recognize the validity of any modern archi-
tecture having its inspiration in past

periods . . .”

It may well be that any external form which
through its beauty gives pleasure to those who
see and live with it is aesthetically justified once
the function of the building has been capably
dealt with in its planning. Beauty of form, even
when resulting from deliberate use of a degree of
imitation may be its own defense. It seems
doubtful that even the severest critic can deny the
powerfully compelling beauty in the massive
strength of the Library towers bounding so
effectively the mass of weight on a horizontal
plane in turn relieved from a too great heaviness
by vertical mullion and buttress lines. It is hard
to believe that the end window of the dining hall
would not be worth constructing in the twentieth
quite as much as in the fifteenth century. It is
scarcely possible that one’s aesthetic feeling for
the dormitories as architecture will not find much
satisfaction in the flow of form from end to end,
essentially similar but with sufficient variance to
relieve monotony of impression.

The ultimate test must be the effect produced by
the architectural composition as a whole and
when criticism has expended its full force the
fact seems still to remain that the Quadrangle
presents the phenomenon of unity brought out of
diversity. Despite the variety of its architectural
antecedents it achieves a complete synthesis. A

This harmony within diversity was also a
goal of the planners and builders of the
underground library addition, lauded
throughout the world as a magnificent
solution to a difficult architectural problem.
With this addition we see a new reflection of
the goals of the Law School and law as an
American institution, one that goes deeper
than anything William Cook could have
foreseen. His perspective was limited to the
Anglo-American tradition in which he was
trained. Facing the twenty-first century, the
University of Michigan Law School seeks to
foster an American societal unity that is
being carved out of a greater diversity of
scholarship and of scholars than Mr. Cook
ever dreamed of. And the dreams of future
alumni can further this goal in ways still
unimagined today.




_% “The Quadrangle isn’t Square,” Law
Quadrangle Notes: Volume 27, Number 2,
1983, pp. 6- 10.

A A Book of the Law Quadrangle at the
University of Michigan, published by the
board of governors of the lawyers club of the
University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Michi-
gan, 1934, Nathan Fred Editor.

4 The Dining Hall: (from “The Lawyer’s
Club, a Gift to Posterity,” 31 Michigan

Alumnus 99 at 101 (1924), reprinted from
Legal Education at Michigan, Elizabeth
Gaspar Brown, University of Michigan Law
School, Ann Arbor, Michigan, 1959, pp.
763-765.

# [ egal Research Building from
“World’s Finest Educational Building,” 37
Michigan Alumnus 465, 1931, reprinted
from Legal Education at Michigan, Elizabeth
Gaspar Brown, University of Michigan Law
School, Ann Arbor, Michigan, 1959, pp.
766-769.

The illustrations in this text are adaptations of rubbings of
the brass carvings in the stairway railings leading from Hutchins
Hall to the lower level of the Legal Research Building.
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